
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
 
 

March 1, 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Ridgewood Trails  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com 

 
February 22, 2023 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Ridgewood Trails Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, March 1, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge Amenity Center, 1667 
Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 32068.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

 

 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (for agenda items listed below) 
  
 III. Organizational Matters 
  A. Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Vacant Seat 
 
  B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
 
  C. Election of Officers, Resolution 2023-03  
 
 IV. Public Hearing: 
  A. Adopting Revised Suspension and Termination Rules, Resolution 2023-04 
 
  B. Adopting Revised Rental Rates, Resolution 2023-05 
 
 V. Consideration of Spending Authority Resolution, Resolution 2023-06 
 
 VI. Consideration of First Addendum to Agreement with Riverside Management 

Services 
 



 VII. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 
Frank for Fiscal Year 2022 

 
 VIII. Consideration of Proposals for Storm Drain Cleaning 
 
 IX. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
 
 B.  Engineer – Work Authorization No. 17 for 2023 Hourly Billing Rate 

Escalation 
         
 C.  Manager  
 
 D.  Operation Manager  
  
 E.  Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Landscape Inspection Report 
  
 X. Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 
 
 XI. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Meeting 
 
  B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
 
 D.  Approval of Check Register 
  
 XII. Next Meeting Scheduled for:  May 3, 2023 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 

Amenity Center  
 
 XIII. Adjournment 
 
 
Board Oversight 
Supervisor Nolte – Landscape 
Supervisor Genska – Security & Technology 
Supervisor Shroyer – Maintenance 
Supervisor Miller – Athletics 
Supervisor Barnhouse - Aquatics 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



































 NR 

OBJECTIVE 

Strong problem-solver, 
highly organized and 
analytical thinker seeks a 
position that I will excel in as 
well as help others by 
investigating all angles and 
leaving no stone unturned.  

SKILLS 

• Analytical thinker 
• Proficient in Microsoft  
• Proficient in Windows 

10 
• Time management 
• Ability to learn and 

excel quickly 
• Management and 

Supervisory skills.  
• Ability to stay calm 

under pressure 
 

NICOLE RUSS 
RECEPTION AND ACCOUNTING – AR / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068 

EXPERIENCE 

RECEPTION AND ACCOUNTING • LIBERTY LAW PLLC. • OCTOBER  
2022 TO CURRENT 

• Answers multiline phones. 
• Posts all payments received from clients. 
• Prepares discovery for trial and mediation for attorneys on 

staff.  
• Drafts and E-Files documents for our clients.  
• Uses multiple databases to via network and internet to pull 

data from.  
• Communicates daily with opposing counsel and opposing 

pro se parties in on going cases.   
• Prepares and emails retainer agreements, promissory 

notes and other documentation to new clients when they 
retainer the firm for representation.  

• Handles the calendar for 2 attorneys and 3 paralegals.  

BUSINESS OPERATIONS SPECIALIST • PACE CENTER FOR GIRLS• 
OCTOBER 2021 TO OCTOBER 2022 

• Prepares deposits and performs AR functions 
• Monitors the aging of accounts receivables  
• Identifies and communicates financial and compliance 

issues to the finance director. 
• Assists in maintaining strong internal controls to ensure 

compliance with GAAP as well as government and other 
regulators. 

• Performs other accounting activities as needed.  
• Performs monthly reconciliations to ensure accuracy of 

financial statements 



NR NICOLE RUSS 
 PURCHASING MANAGER / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068  

 

 

2 

• Verifies pledges per donor database to financial systems 
and prepares reconciliation as well as resolve any 
differences in the system. 

PURCHASING MANAGER • NORTH FLORIDA GLASS & ALUMINUM • 
NOVEMBER 2020 TO OCTOBER 2021 

• Posts all invoices while making sure to investigate there 
are no duplicates as well as ensuring all charges are valid.  

• Places orders for contract jobs, service jobs and residential 
jobs making sure that the orders do not go over budget 
and all charges are accurate.   

• The use of multiple databases to gather all the facts to 
ensure accuracy of orders. 

QUALITY ANALYST • AAT OMEGA • JULY 2020 TO NOVEMBER 2020 
• Inspection of all parts for quality and to ensure they are 

meeting ISO900/9100 standards. 
• Identifies non-conforming parts, writes reports on non-

conformance. 

EDUCATION 

B.A.S. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISION • AUGUST 2021 
TO PRESENT• FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE 
Bachelor of Applied Science in Business Management and 
Supervision.  Graduation set for Spring 2023 

A.S. CRIMINAL JUSTICE • JANUARY 2019 TO MAY 2021• FLORIDA 
STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE 
Associates of science in Criminal Justice.  Graduated with High 
Honors and 3.81 GPA 



NR NICOLE RUSS 
 PURCHASING MANAGER / 904-540-5622 

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32068  

 

 

3 

GED • 2000 • CASSADAGA JOB CORPS 
Obtained my GED and my Driver’s license while attending job 
corps.  

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE OR LEADERSHIP 

October 2020, Half Penny for Duval Schools 
• Called local duval county registered voters to educate 

them on the half penny for duval schools and to encourage 
them to vote for it.  

 
January 2020, Member of the National Society of Leadership and 
Success.  
 
January 2020, Member of Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society. 

  

 



Ridgewood Trails CDD: 
 
   Please find my enclosed resume and voter card. 
 
   The position I am interested in; and hope to be considered 
for is the CDD Supervisor vacancy. I meet your requirements 
for filling the vacancy. I live and own a house in A/R, have 
a voter card, replying before February 20, 2023; AND plan 
to be at the meeting on March 1, 2023. (Have attended 
some meetings). 
 
   I also have reviewed a copy of Form 1; of the Statement 
of Financial Interests. I will be happy to see that the form 
is completed and file it. 
 
   Since I am retired, I am looking for something in my 
community to be involved in, and help in any way I can. 
If I were to be the one to fill the vacancy, and learn 
all about Ridgewood Trails CDD, I know I can come up 
with some ideas, and can make  a difference; after all 
I LIVE here. (three years). 
 
Scott Edson 
4254 Green River Place 
Middleburg, Florida 32068 
904-264-3012 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RESOLUTION 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 
Development District at a regular business held on March 1, 2023 desires to elect the below 
recited persons to the offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
     Chairman 

    Vice Chairman 

  Marilee Giles  Secretary 

  Marilee Giles  Treasurer 

  James Oliver  Assistant Treasurer (s) 

  Daniel Laughlin  

  Darrin Mossing  

  Howard McGaffney  

  James Oliver  Assistant Secretary 

  Daniel Laughlin   

  Darrin Mossing  

  Howard McGaffney  

    

    

    

  PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 1ST DAY OF MARCH, 2023. 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



RESOLUTION 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING REVISED SUSPENSION AND 
TERMINATION RULES; RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE DISTRICT SECRETARY IN 
SETTING THE DATE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Ridgewood Trails Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, which owns, operates and maintains certain recreational amenity facilities 
(collectively, “Recreational Facilities”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes, authorize the District to adopt rules, 
rates, charges and fees to govern the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as 
may be necessary for the conduct of District business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) desires to adopt revised rules 
relating to the suspension and/or termination of patrons’ rights to utilize the Recreational 
Facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District and necessary for 
the efficient operation of the District to adopt by resolution the revised Suspension and 
Termination of Access Rule (“Suspension and Termination Rules”), which are attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for immediate use and application; and 

 
WHEREAS, by motion of the District’s Board at the January 4, 2023 Board meeting a 

public hearing was set to adopt the Suspension and Termination Rules; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the District Secretary caused to be published the notice of rulemaking and 

notice of rule development to adopt the Suspension and Termination Rules; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has complied with applicable Florida law concerning rule 

development and adoption, including the holding of a public hearing thereon. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The Suspension and Termination Rules set forth in Exhibit A are hereby 
adopted pursuant to this resolution as necessary for the conduct of District business and shall 
remain in full force and effect unless revised or repealed by the District in accordance with 
Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes. 
 



SECTION 2. The actions of the Board and District Secretary in setting the date of the 
public hearing and publishing the notice of rule development and notice of rulemaking are 
hereby ratified. 

 
SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST:     RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors  
 

 

Exhibit A:  Revised Suspension and Termination of Access Rule 



Exhibit A 
Revised Suspension and Termination of Access Rule 



SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF ACCESS RULE 
 

Law Implemented: ss. 120.69, 190.011, 190.012, Fla. Stat. (2022) 
Effective Date: March 1, 2023 

 
 
 

In accordance with Chapters 190 and 120 of the Florida Statutes, and on March 1, 
2023 at a duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District (“District”) adopted the following 
rules / policies to govern disciplinary and enforcement matters. All prior rules / policies of 
the District governing this subject matter are hereby rescinded for any violations occurring 
after the date stated above. 
 
 
 

1. Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating 
to the use of the amenities and other properties owned and managed by the District 
(“Amenities” or “Amenity”). 

 
2. General Rule. All persons using the Amenities and entering District properties 

are responsible for compliance with the rules and policies established for the safe operations of 
the District’s Amenities. 

 
3. Access Cards / Key Fobs.  Access cards and key fobs are the property of the 

District.  The District may request surrender of, or may deactivate, a person’s access card or 
key fob for violation of the District’s rules and policies established for the safe operations of 
the District’s Amenities.  

 
4. Suspension and Termination of Rights. The District shall have the right to 

restrict, suspend, or terminate the Amenity access of any person and members of their 
household to use all or a portion of the Amenities for any of the following acts (each, a 
“Violation”):  

 
a. Submitting false information on any application for use of the Amenities, 

including but not limited to facility rental applications; 

b. Failing to abide by the terms of rental applications; 

c. Permitting the unauthorized use of a key fob or access card or otherwise 
facilitates or allows unauthorized use of the Amenities; 

d. Exhibiting inappropriate behavior or repeatedly wearing inappropriate attire; 

e. Failing to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner 



(with the exception of special assessments); 

f. Failing to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Amenity Rules); 

g. Treating the District’s staff, contractors, representatives, residents, 
landowners [Patrons] or guests, in a harassing or abusive manner; 

h. Damaging, destroying, rendering inoperable or interfering with the 
operation of District property, or other property located on District property;  

i. Failing to reimburse the District for property damaged by such person, or a minor 
for whom the person has charge, or a guest;  

j. Engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety, or 
welfare of the District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners [Patrons] 
or guests;  

k. Committing or is alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on or 
off District property that leads the District to reasonably believe the health, safety or 
welfare of the District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners [Patrons] 
or guests is likely endangered; 

l. Engaging in another Violation after a verbal warning has been given by 
staff (which verbal warning is not required); or 

m. Such person’s guest or a member of their household commits any of the 
above Violations.  

 
Termination of Amenity access shall only be considered and implemented by the Board in situations 
that pose a long term or continuing threat to the health, safety and/or welfare of the District, its staff, 
contractors, representatives, residents, landowners [Patrons] or guests.  The Board, in its sole 
discretion and upon motion of any Board member, may vote to rescind a termination of Amenity 
access.   
 

5. Administrative Reimbursement.  The Board may in its discretion require 
payment of an administrative reimbursement of up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500) in order to 
offset the legal and/or administrative expenses incurred by the District as a result of a Violation 
(“Administrative Reimbursement”).  Such Administrative Reimbursement shall be in addition 
to any suspension or termination of Amenity access, any applicable legal action warranted by 
the circumstances, and/or any Property Damage Reimbursement (defined below).  

 
6. Property Damage Reimbursement.  If damage to District property occurred in 

connection with a Violation, the person or persons who caused the damage, or the person 
whose guest caused the damage, or the person who has charge of a minor that caused the 
damage, shall reimburse the District for the costs of cleaning, repairing, and/or replacing the 
property (“Property Damage Reimbursement”).   Such Property Damage Reimbursement shall 
be in addition to any suspension or termination of Amenity access, any applicable legal action 



warranted by the circumstances, and/or any Administrative Reimbursement. 

 
7. Removal from Amenities. The District Manager, General Manager, 

Amenity Manager and onsite staff each have the independent ability to remove any 
person from the Amenities if a Violation occurs, or if in his or her discretion, it is in the 
District’s best interest to do so.  

 
8. Initial Suspension from Amenities.  The District Manager, General Manager, 

Amenity Manager or his or her designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or 
causes, including but not limited to a Violation, any person’s access to the Amenities until a 
date not later than the next regularly scheduled meeting date of the Board that is scheduled to 
occur at least twenty-one (21) days after the date of initial suspension.  In the event of such a 
suspension, the District Manager or his or her designee shall mail a letter to the person 
suspended referencing the conduct at issue, the sections of the District’s rules and policies 
violated, the time, date, and location of the next regular Board meeting where the person’s 
suspension will be presented to the Board, and a statement that the person has a right to appear 
before the Board and offer testimony and evidence why the suspension should be lifted.  If the 
person is a minor, the letter shall be sent to the adults at the address within the community 
where the minor resides.   

 
9. Hearing by the Board; Administrative Reimbursement; Property Damage 

Reimbursement.   

 
a. At the Board meeting referenced in the letter sent under Section 8 above, 

or as soon thereafter as a Board meeting is held if the meeting referenced in the letter is 
canceled, a hearing shall be held at which both District staff and the person subject to the 
suspension shall be given the opportunity to appear, present testimony and evidence, 
cross examine witnesses present, and make arguments.  The Board may also ask 
questions of District staff, the person subject to the suspension, and witnesses present.  
All persons are entitled to be represented by a licensed Florida attorney at such hearing.   

b. After the presentations by District staff and the person subject to the 
suspension, the Board shall consider the facts and circumstances and determine whether 
to lift or extend the suspension or impose a termination.  In determining the length of any 
suspension, or a termination, the Board shall consider the nature of the conduct, the 
circumstances of the conduct, the number of rules or policies violated, the person’s 
escalation or de-escalation of the situation, and any prior Violations and/or suspensions   

c. The Board shall also determine whether an Administrative Reimbursement 
is warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Administrative Reimbursement. 

d. The Board shall also determine whether a Property Damage 
Reimbursement is warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Property Damage 



Reimbursement.  If the cost to clean, repair and/or replace the property is not yet 
available, the Property Damage Reimbursement shall be fixed at the next regularly 
scheduled Board meeting after the cost to clean, repair, and/or replace the property is 
known. 

e. After the conclusion of the hearing, the District Manager shall mail a letter 
to the person suspended identifying the Board’s determination at such hearing. 

 
10. Suspension by the Board.  The Board on its own initiative acting at a noticed 

public meeting may elect to consider a suspension of a person’s access for committing any of 
the Violations outlined in Section 4.  In such circumstance, a letter shall be sent to the person 
suspended which contains all the information required by Section 8, and the hearing shall be 
conducted in accordance with Section 9. 

 
11. Automatic Extension of Suspension for Non-Payment.  Unless there is an 

affirmative vote of the Board otherwise, no suspension or termination will be lifted or expire 
until all Administrative Reimbursements and Property Damage Reimbursements have been 
paid to the District.  If an Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement 
is not paid by its due date, the District reserves the right to request surrender of, or deactivate, 
all access cards or key fobs associated with an address within the District until such time as the 
outstanding amounts are paid.   

 
12. Appeal of Board Suspension.  After the hearing held by the Board required by 

Section 9, a person subject to a suspension or termination may appeal the suspension or 
termination, or the assessment or amount of an Administrative Reimbursement or Property 
Damage Reimbursement, to the Board by filing a written request for an appeal (“Appeal 
Request”).  The filing of an Appeal Request shall not result in the stay of the suspension or 
termination.  The Appeal Request shall be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after mailing of 
the notice of the Board’s determination as required by Section 9(e), above.  For purposes of this 
Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon receipt 
by the District. Failure to file an Appeal Request shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest 
the District’s suspension or termination, and shall constitute a failure to exhaust administrative 
remedies.  The District shall consider the appeal at a Board meeting and shall provide 
reasonable notice to the person of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered.  At 
the appeal stage, no new evidence shall be offered or considered.  Instead, the appeal is an 
opportunity for the person subject to the suspension or termination to argue, based on the 
evidence elicited at the hearing, why the suspension or termination should be reduced or 
vacated.  The Board may take any action deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate 
under the circumstances, including affirming, overturning, or otherwise modifying the 
suspension or termination. The Board’s decision on appeal shall be final. 

 
13. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution; Trespass.  If any person is found to have 



committed a Violation, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or 
other applicable legal action, civil or criminal in nature.  If a person subject to a suspension or 
termination is found at an Amenity Facility, such Person will be subject to arrest for 
trespassing.  If a trespass warrant is issued to a person by a law enforcement agency, the 
District has no obligation to seek a withdrawal or termination of the trespass warrant even 
though the issuance of the trespass warrant may effectively prevent a person from using the 
District’s Amenities after expiration of a suspension imposed by the District. 

 
14. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this rule shall be 

held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall continue in full 
force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of this rule 
would have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section. 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING AMENDED AMENITY RATES 
AND FEES; RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE DISTRICT SECRETARY IN SETTING 
THE DATE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Ridgewood Trails Community Development District (the "District") is a 
local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, being situated in Clay County, Florida; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapters 190 and 120, Florida Statutes, authorize the District to adopt rules, 
rates, charges and fees to govern the administration of the District and defray costs of 
operation and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of District business and 
further provide that the District may adopt policies related thereto by resolution or motion; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted a resolution adopting user rates and fees 
(“Prior Rates”); and 

 
WHEREAS, by motion of the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) at the January 4, 

2023 Board meeting a public hearing was set to adopt amended amenity rates, attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference (“Amended Amenity Rates”); and   

 
 WHEREAS, the District Secretary caused to be published the notice of rulemaking and 

notice of rule development to adopt the Amended Amenity Rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, after providing notice pursuant to Florida law, and after holding a public 

hearing thereon, the Board finds that it is in the best interest of the District and necessary for 
the efficient operation of the District to adopt by resolution the amended amenity rates, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for immediate use and 
application (“Amended Amenity Rates”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Amended Amenity Rates outlined in Exhibit A is just 
and equitable having been based upon (i) the amount of service furnished; (ii) the average 
number of persons residing or working in or otherwise occupying the premises served; and 
upon (iii) other factors affecting the use of the facilities furnished. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The above stated recitals are true and correct and by this reference are 
hereby incorporated into this resolution. 
 



2 
 

SECTION 2. The actions of the Board and District Secretary in setting the date of the 
public hearing and publishing the notice of rule development and notice of rulemaking are 
hereby ratified. 

 
SECTION 3. The Amended Amenity Rates as set forth in Exhibit A are hereby adopted 

pursuant to this resolution as necessary for the conduct of District business. The Amended 
Amenity Rates shall replace the Prior Rates imposed by the district and shall remain in full force 
and effect unless revised or repealed by the District in accordance with Chapters 120 and 190, 
Florida Statutes.  
 
 SECTION 4. If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 5. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March 2023. 
    
 
ATTEST:      RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
               
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Amended Amenity Rates 



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Amended Amenity Rates 

     
 Rental Fee Deposit 
Building $75.00 - $150.00 $250.00- Private party  
Building w/small pool $150.00 - $250.00 $500.00- Private party  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) AUTHORIZING THE DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS OF 
THE DISTRICT WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE DISTRICT’S BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS (“BOARD”); SETTING CERTAIN MONETARY THRESHOLDS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of providing, operating and 
maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and services to the lands within the District; 
and 
  
 WHEREAS, Section 190.011(5), Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt 
resolutions which may be necessary for the conduct of District business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Rule 1.1(2) of the District’s Rules of Procedure contemplates that the Board 
may delegate authority to others to contract or make expenditures on behalf of the District; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board hereby determines that for purposes of administrative and 
accounting necessity, it is in the best interests of the District, and necessary for the conduct of 
District business, to establish a policy governing the disbursement of funds without prior 
approval of the Board, as set forth below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 Section 1. Payment of Expenses. 
 

A. Continuing Expenses.  The Board hereby authorizes the payment of 
invoices of continuing expenses, which meet the following requirements: 
 

1. The invoices must be due on or before the next scheduled 
meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
2. The invoice must be pursuant to a contract or agreement 
authorized by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
3. The total amount paid under such contract or agreement, 
including the current invoice, must be equal to or less than the 
amount specified in the contract or agreement. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

B. Non-Continuing Expenses.   The Board hereby authorizes the 
disbursement of funds for payment of invoices of non-continuing 
expenses which are 1) required or appropriate for the District to maintain 
orderly, efficient and effective operations, maintenance and replacement 
of the District’s facilities and infrastructure, 2) required to provide for the 
health, safety, and welfare of the residents within the District; or 3) 
required to repair, control, or maintain a District facility or asset beyond 
the normal, usual, or customary maintenance required for such facility or 
assets, pursuant to the following schedule:  
 

Non-Continuing Expenses Not Exceeding $2,500 for general 
maintenance, not including new projects or enhancements, with 
approval of the District Manager and Chairperson, or Vice 
Chairperson in his or her absence, of the Board of Supervisors, if 
in the judgment of the District Manager and Chairperson, or Vice 
Chairperson, such Non-Continuing Expense is required to be 
addressed before the next scheduled meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
Before any expenditure is made, the District Manager shall confirm that 
there are available funds in the budget to pay the expense, either in the 
line item most germane to the expense or in another budget line item 
that has the capacity to be used for the expense. 
 

C. Emergency Expenses.  For emergency expenses exceeding the 
authorization in section 1.B. above, and in the event that an emergency 
meeting of the Board cannot timely be convened pursuant to the 
District’s Rule 1.3(6) and Florida law, the Board hereby authorizes the 
disbursement of funds in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for 
emergency repairs and $20,000 for natural disaster repairs, but only with 
the prior written approval of (i) the District Manager and (ii) the 
Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors, or in his or her absence, the Vice 
Chairperson.  For purposes of this Resolution, the term “emergency 
expense” means a purchase or payment necessitated by a sudden 
unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods, 
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control 
of the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the delay of 
waiting for a board meeting would be detrimental to the interests of the 
District.  This includes, but is not limited to, instances where delay will 
jeopardize the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of 
the project, will likely cause damage to property, will prejudice the 
District’s interest in a project already in progress, or will create an undue 
hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Section 2. Board Consideration.  Any payment made pursuant to this Resolution 
shall be submitted to the Board at the next scheduled meeting for review and ratification.  
Copies of any disbursements made under the authority of this Resolution shall be included in 
the agenda package for the scheduled meeting or otherwise distributed to the Board at the 
meeting. 
 

Section 3.  Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
Section 4.   Effective Date; Conflicts.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the 

passage and adoption by the Board and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.  All 
District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of 
such conflict, superseded and repealed.  
 

Introduced, considered favorably, and adopted this 1st day of March 2023. 
 
ATTEST:      RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



FIRST ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES, INC., FOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS 

SERVICES 
 
 THIS FIRST ADDENDUM (“First Addendum”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 
_______ 2023, by and between: 
 

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
located in Clay County, Florida, whose address is 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”), and 

 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC., a Florida corporation, with offices 
located at 9655 Florida Mining Boulevard West, Building 300, Suite 305, 
Jacksonville, Florida 32257 (“Contractor” and, together with the District, 
“Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor previously entered into the Agreement between 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District and Riverside Management Services, Inc. for 
Facility Management and field Operations Services, dated August 25, 2022 (“Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in more detail in Section 

2 below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of the Parties has the authority to execute this First Addendum and to 
perform its obligations and duties hereunder and has satisfied all conditions precedent to the 
execution of this First Addendum so that this First Addendum constitutes a legal and binding 
obligation of each of the Parties hereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants 
of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the District and the 
Contractor agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. Except as specifically amended by Section 2 of this First Addendum, the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.   
 

SECTION 2. The Agreement is hereby amended to add the following provision as 
Paragraph number 29. as follows:  

 
 29. PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES BY CONTRACTOR.  Contractor’s onsite 
representative for the District (“Amenity Manager”), shall have the authority to make payment 
directly to vendors or make purchases for emergency or non-recurring services or goods necessary 
for budgeted items up to $1,500 per purchase, provided that if the monthly total of such purchases 
exceeds $1,500 such purchases shall be approved in advance by the District Manager. All of 



2 
 

Contractor’s expenditures shall be in accordance with the District’s Rules of Procedure and Florida 
law.  To the extent feasible, Contractor shall take all necessary steps to ensure that any Credit Card 
purchases are made on a tax-exempt basis. The District shall not reimburse Contractor until 
provided with a full accounting, including copies of any receipts, for any monies Contractor spent. 
Contractor shall be responsible for payment of any purchases that are not supported by appropriate 
receipts, or previously approved if required (“Reimbursement Amount”).   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
 
ATTEST: RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
WITNESS:      RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT  

SERVICES, INC. 
 
 
_____________________________   ___________________________________ 
Witness      Jerry Lambert, President 
_____________________________ 
Print Name of Witness 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



  
 

 

 

Welcome to the DeAngelo Contract Services Family.  Let’s take an opportunity to tell you about DCS and what we offer.   The 
programs DCS has designed for your waterways has one goal:  To promote an environmentally balanced aquatic ecosystem, 
using cost effective methods that results in well maintain water quality, clarity, and provides our customers with an 
environmental and recreational asset. 

Benefits of DCS Programs are:  

* Management of aquatic littoral and other native planting and sanctuary areas, which aids in the management of nutrient 

loading of the water body and creates native areas for wildlife. 

* Management of algae and undesirable water weeds along the shoreline, floating on the surface or submersed under the 

water.  

* Management of border grass and weeds from the toe of the bank to the water’s edge 

* Water analysis for Dissolved Oxygen (DO), pH and Temperature when we treat 

* Post Treatment Reports providing details of work we performed.  

Additional service available from DCS:  

* Wetland planting, restoration, and maintenance 

* Installation of Decorative Fountains and Aeration Systems 

* Servicing Fountain and Aeration Systems 

* Blue Dye / Water Clarity Treatment  

* Turbidity Curtains and Weed Barriers  

* Waterway and Wetland Consulting  

* The creation of littoral and other native planting and sanctuary areas.  

* Permit processing for stocking of Triploid Grass Carp 

* Stocking of Game fish and Triploid Grass Carp  

* Comprehensive water testing 

 

Advantages of doing business with DCS:  

* Ten million dollars of insurance coverage, with pollution coverage, to protect you and your organization.  

* Quick response to customer calls.  

* Boats, skiffs, and four-wheel drive maintenance vehicles with appropriate systems to complete the job. 

* Where required, monthly management service reports for use in meetings and submission to government agencies. 

* Educational presentations to interested groups.  

* Our field crews are in uniforms with our company name embroidered identification.  

* Our trucks, boats and spray vehicles are clearly identified with our name, seal, and telephone numbers.  

The following is an agreement covering the services DCS will complete for the various bodies of water on your property, a copy of all 

necessary documents as required and an information sheet detailing your waterways DCS will be treating.  If, at any time, you are not 

fully satisfied with our service there is a cancellation clause included in the agreement.  

Please sign the below agreement and return this to our office for immediate scheduling of service. We look forward to the 
opportunity of serving you.  Respectfully yours, The team at DCS. 

 



  
 

 

 

DeAngelo Contracting Services SPECIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This agreement, dated 2/14/2023, is made between DeAngelo Contracting Services and Ridgewood Trail Residential POA as 

described as follows: 

 

RIDGEWOOD TRAIL RESIDENTIAL POA 

3813 Great Falls Loop 

Middleburg,  FL  32068 

Contact:  Tara Lee  (904) 214-3346 

 

                                                                                                                                     QTY        COST       TOTAL 

 

VAC & JETTING 
Daily charge (Port to Port) for vac & jetting services using Vac Truck with 
10yd debris capacity & 150 gal water tank. 8 hr min                                          1           $4,800.00    $4,800.00 
Dump Site For Debris (5903 Lenox Ave, Jacksonville, FL 32205)                     1           $   880.00    $   880.00 

 

Mobilization of Crews                                                                                         1            $1,200.00    $1,200.00 

 

                                                                                                                                                  TOTAL:          $6,880.00 
 

 

 

 

CONTRACT TERMS 

The terms of this Agreement shall be continuous without interruption until the project is completed or this Agreement is terminated 

as provided for below. Contract addendum(s) may alter or change these terms and conditions.   

1. Safety: 

DeAngelo Contracting Services agrees to furnish for use in inspecting and treating agreed to bodies of water all appropriate 

equipment and products, which in its sole discretion will provide safe and effective results for the specific site(s) following Florida 

law, rules, regulations and BMP -Best Management Practices for aquatics. 

 

2. Insurance: 

DeAngelo Contracting Services agrees to maintain the following insurance coverage:  Worker's Compensation, General Liability, 

Automobile Liability, Property and Casualty, Excess Liability and Business Interruption Coverage.  Upon written request, 

CUSTOMER may be listed as an "Additional Insured" at no extra charge.  A Certificate of Insurance will be provided at the 

CUSTOMER's request. 

3. Address Change: 

If DeAngelo Contracting Services or CUSTOMER undergoes a change in address, notification to the other party shall be made by 

email, or first-class mail. Written instructions including the new address and telephone number will be enclosed in the notification.   

4. Management Change: 

If the CUSTOMER undergoes a change of management or personnel in governing and administering of the CUSTOMER, this 

Agreement will remain in place unless and until terminated in accordance with Paragraph 11.  It is the responsibility of the 



  
 

 

 

CUSTOMER to notify DeAngelo Contracting Services of any management or personnel change by email or first-class mail.  

Customer is responsible for all invoices and past due amounts plus interest shall any invoice become past due because of said 

management changes. 

5. Schedule of Payment and Penalties for past due invoices:   

CUSTOMER will be invoiced upon completion of the special service agreement and agrees to pay DeAngelo Contracting Services 

within thirty (30) days after date of invoice at the DCS home office at 527 South Church St, Hazleton, PA, 18201.  Failure to pay 

the invoiced amount when due shall constitute a default under this Agreement and will result in customer becoming responsible for 

all charges that are necessary to collect the full amount of the invoice plus said necessary collection charges. 

6. Default: 

If CUSTOMER defaults on any provision of this Agreement, CUSTOMER hereby agrees that 

DeAngelo Contracting Services may, at its sole discretion, seek any or all the following remedies: 

a. Termination of this Agreement. In this event, CUSTOMER agrees to make immediate payment of the total contract amount 

through the end of its term (less previously paid payments) as liquidated and agreed upon damage. 

b. Filing of a mechanics lien on property for all monies due plus interest, DeAngelo Contracting Services costs and attorney’s 

fees incurred by DeAngelo Contracting Services. 

7. Termination Procedure: 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party with thirty (30) days written notice. Notification must be sent by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to DeAngelo Contracting Services, 527 South Church St, Hazleton, PA 18201.  "Date of Termination" will 

be defined as: one (1) month after the last day of the month in which "Notice of Cancellation" was received by DeAngelo 

Contracting Services in accordance with paragraph 10 

a. If your account is not settled in full at the same time as your cancellation letter is received, DCS will continue to bill you until 

the contract expires. Settlement in full includes payment for one month’s service after the end of the month in which the 

cancellation letter is received by DCS. 

b. Payment in full shall be defined as payment to DCS through the effective "Date of Termination" as determined by the procedure 

outlined above in section 10 of this contract. 

 

 

 

 

8. OTHER ITEMS:  

 

a. Work or other expenses related to request(s) by CUSTOMER for services that are not specified in this contract will require 

a signed Special Service Agreement (SSA) detailing the requested additional services and associated costs before work 

may begin.  This SSA will be invoiced separately upon completion of the work detailed in the SSA. 

b. DeAngelo Contracting Services reserves the right, under special circumstances, to initiate surcharges relating to 

extraordinary price increases of any products. 

c. Customer agrees to notify and locate for company any private in ground utilities or structures.  If customer does not notify 

and locate for company private in ground utilities or structures, company is not responsible for damages to said utilities or 

structures.  Company will have public in ground utilities located through 811. 

d. DeAngelo Contracting Services will make every attempt to protect all work areas from excess damage and wear and tear.  

Minor cosmetic damage may occur that given time will return to pre work condition. 

 

9.   Contract Documents: 

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of DeAngelo Contracting Services and the CUSTOMER. If any portion of this 

Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall be binding upon both parties.  No 

oral or written modification of the terms contained herein shall be valid unless made in writing and accepted by an authorized agent 

of both DeAngelo Contracting Services and CUSTOMER. 



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________    ________________________________ 

DeAngelo Contracting Services                     CUSTOMER 

 

_____________________________                           ________________________________ 

PRINT NAME                      PRINT NAME 

 

_____________________________                ________________________________ 

DATE        DATE 

 

The offer contained in this Agreement is valid for sixty (60) days only and must be returned to our office for acceptance within 

that period. If not accepted within that time, the offer shall be void. 

 

 

 

 

Julie Clements

2/14/2023



METRO-ROOTER 
8892 Normandy Blvd 
Jacksonville, FL 32221 

  
www.wrenvironmental.com 

 

   

 
PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

General Terms and Conditions 
 

Submitted to:  
Site Contact: 

Tarra Lee (904) 214-3346  
 

 
 

Job Sites: 

Ridgewood Trails 
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
 
ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com  

SAME 

 Date: 2/10/2023 
  

Service – Storm System Cleaning Rate 

➢ Hy-Vac Truck Required Pump out Catch Basins and 
Hydro-jet connecting storm lines near exercise 
facility.  

 
 

Cost = $1,425.00 

➢ Fuel Surcharge 19%                 Cost = $270.75 

  

 Total Cost = $1,695.75 

                                                   Payment terms: TBD 
 

 
 

Pricing Valid Until: 
30 Days 

24 hr. Emergency Service 

 904-695-1911 
 
 

Thank you, 
Robert Giordano 
904-646-7834 
Commercial Sales 
rgiordano@wrenvironmental.com 
 

**Note: Fuel / Energy Recovery is based on the Energy Information Administration’s National U.S. Average on Highway Fuel Price** 
 
A. SERVICES  WRE agrees to perform all svcs as stated in this agreement in accordance with applicable laws, environmental 
regulations, & gov’t & commercial standards.  WRE agrees to obtain and maintain at our sole expense for the term of this 
Agreement, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 for each occurrence, combined single limit for bodily and 
property damage.  Customer warrants that all equipment (grease traps, drain lines, manhole covers, etc.) upon which work is to be 
performed are owned by the Customer, or that authorization for the work has been obtained from the rightful property owner. The 
Customer shall be responsible for compensating WRE for any and all damages collected against WRE by any third party 
demonstrating actual ownership of the equipment upon which work is to be performed, regarding damage to which the customer 
represents as their own.  Customer agrees to provide access to work areas for WRE’s employees and vehicles and agrees to keep 
access clear and available for movement and parking of trucks and equipment during service time.  WRE assumes no liability or 
responsibilities for any cracking, breaking, puncturing, depressing or any other damage to any driveway, patio, other paved, bricked, 
stoned, concrete or asphalt surface which may result from trucks and equipment being used to access the job site. BThis Agreement 
may not be assigned by Customer without the prior written consent of WRE.  If the operations at any Location are conducted at a 
new location, such new location, at the option of SELLER, shall be a Location subject to all of the terms and conditions of this 

http://www.wrenvironmental.com/
mailto:ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com
mailto:rgiordano@wrenvironmental.com


Agreement.  PURCHASER shall give notice to SELLER at least one (1) month prior to the date of any such relocation.  Assignment: 
This Agreement may not be assigned by PURCHASER without the prior written consent of SELLER.  This agreement is automatically 
assignable to a New Owner.  
 
 C. PAYMENT  Customer agrees to pay WRE the amounts listed above on this agreement for grease trap waste removal and/or line 
jetting services.  Payment is to be received upon completion of each service listed above on this agreement for grease trap waste 
removal and /or line jetting services. In the event the scope of work changes, WRE will be paid for all the items on the contact that 
have been completed. Any additional work performed requested by the Customer will be billed on a time and material basis. A 
service charge of 1.5% per month will be added to the account thirty days after invoice date. Customer is responsible for all costs 
associated with the collection including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and court costs.  Taxes, Other Fees and Charges, Permits 
and Compliance: Customer shall pay all applicable taxes, fees, assessments and penalties and will obtain permits and licenses in any 
manner connected with the services being provided and will comply with all laws, regulations and ordinances applicable thereto. 
Customer shall pay WRE an Environmental Fee in connection with WRE’s compliance with federal, state and local materials 
regulations applicable to WRE’s operations and activities; Customer acknowledges that Environmental Fee is retained by WRE and 
not paid to any governmental agency or authority. Customer shall pay WRE any applicable delivery charges, regulatory 
administrative fees, surcharges (including an energy/fuel surcharge for delivery of Product (per Customer Location) in accordance 
with WRE’s then current energy surcharge), and other charges or surcharges applicable to WRE’s customers generally in effect from 
time to time.  
  
 Acceptance of Contract: The above specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment 
will be made as contracted. 

 

CUSTOMER:                        SERVICE PROVIDER:  Metro Rooter Plumbing 

Service 

 

Print Name:       Print Name: Robert Giordano_________________

   

 

Print Title:                                                                                             Print Title:  Commercial Sales Representative____ 

 

 

Authorized Signature:      ______                                                        Authorized Signature: Robert Giordano_ 

 

 

Date:_______________________________                                                                        Date:____2/10/2023                            __                                         
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 





  
 
 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  17 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 2022/2023 GENERAL CONSULTING ENGINEERING SERVICES 
GENERAL FUND 

(ETM No.: 04-051-01-011) 
 
 

Scope of Work 
 
 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc. shall provide consulting engineering for the Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District as directed by the Board of Supervisors or their designee.  General 
consulting services shall include but are not limited to: 
 
1. Attending District Meetings      
2. Preparation of Monthly Requisitions   
3. Preparation of Cost Estimates and Budgets     
4. Technical Support for Community Development District Staff     
5. Development and Analysis of District Projects 
6. Site Visits as Necessary 
7. Prepare Presentation Documents for District Meetings     
 
 
The outlined services shall be performed on a time and material basis at the currently approved rate 
and expense schedule.  The estimated fee shall not be exceeded without further authorization.  This 
estimated fee is not a guaranteed maximum cost. 
 
 
Part 1 General Consulting Engineering Services for 2022/2023 

ESTIMATED FEE .................................................................................... …….…………..$10,000.00 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ridgewood Trails CDD  Page 2 of 3 

WA#17 

 
G:\04-051\04-051-01A\CDD\Work Authorizations\Ridgewood Trails CDD - WA#17 2022-2023 General Consulting Engineering Services.doc 

 
 
 
 
                                                      Basis of Estimated Fee 

                    England Thims & Miller, Inc. 
                Hourly Fee Schedule 2022/2023  

CEO/CSO………………………………………………………………………………………. $400.00 /Hr. 

President……………………………………………………………………………………… $350.00 /Hr. 

Executive Vice President………………………………………………………………. $335.00 /Hr. 

Vice President ……………………………………………………………………………… $260.00 /Hr. 

Senior Engineer/ Senior Project Manager…………………………………….. $215.00 /Hr. 

Project Manager………………………………………………………………………….. $200.00 /Hr. 

Director………………………………………………………………………………………… $185.00 /Hr. 

Engineer………………………………………………………………………………………. $175.00 /Hr. 

Assistant Project Manager …………………………………………………………… $155.00 /Hr. 

Senior Planner /Planning Manager………………………………………………. $200.00 /Hr. 

Senior Environmental Scientist……………………………………………….…… $215.00 /Hr. 

Planner………………………………………………………………………………………… $163.00 /Hr. 

CEI Senior Project Engineer………………………………………………………… $230.00 /Hr. 

CEI Project Manager/Project Administrator……………………………….. $184.00 /Hr. 

CEI Senior Inspector……………………………………………………………………… $163.00 /Hr. 

CEI Inspector ……………………………………………………………………………….. $132.00 /Hr. 

Senior Landscape Architect………………………………………………………….. $184.00 /Hr. 

Landscape Architect…………………………………………………………………….. $165.00 /Hr. 

Senior Technician/Senior Specialist……………………………………………. $163.00 /Hr. 

GIS Program Manager……………………………………………………..……..……. $180.00 /Hr. 

GIS Analyst ………………………………………………………………………………….. $140.00 /Hr. 

GIS Consultant……………………………………………………………………………… $150.00 /Hr. 

Senior Engineering Designer / Senior LA Designer………………………… $160.00 /Hr. 

Engineering Intern ………………………………………………………………………. $140.00 /Hr. 

Engineering/Landscape Designer…………………………………………………. $140.00 /Hr. 

CADD/GIS Technician…………………………………………………………………… $132.00 /Hr. 

Project Coordinator / CSS…………………………………………………………… $100.00 /Hr. 

Administrative Support………………………………………………………………… $95.00 /Hr. 

 

*ETM’s standard hourly billing rates are reevaluated annually prior to the beginning of the calendar year and subject to an 
increase not to exceed five (5) percent per year. 

 



Ridgewood Trails CDD Page 3 of 3 

WA#17 

G:\04-051\04-051-01A\CDD\Work Authorizations\Ridgewood Trails CDD - WA#17 2022-2023 General Consulting Engineering Services.doc 

Costs such as subconsultants, printing, telephone, delivery service, mileage and travel shall be invoiced 
at direct costs plus 15%. 

Time of Performance

Services rendered will commence upon District approval and will be completed on or before September 
30, 2023. 

Approval

Submitted by:  ___________________________________ Date:________________ 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 

Approved by: __________________________________ Date: _______________ 
 Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 

2/2/2023



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



 

  

3/1/2023 

 
  

Azalea Ridge at 
Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 
Amenity Management Report 

Tara Lee 
AMENITY MANAGER 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 
 

 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 1 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
Amenity Management Report 

March 1, 2023 
 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Tara Lee 
  Amenity Manager 
 
RE:  Azalea Ridge Amenity Management Report – March 1, 2023 
 

The following is a summary of items related to the field operations, 
maintenance, and amenity management of Azalea Ridge.  

 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 2 

Community Updates 

 
MAINTENANCE 

• Access control installation for restroom doors is complete. Social hall door has a new 
card reader. Pool gate has a new card reader.  

• Fitness center renovation 
o Fixed imprecations of crown molding; sand, caulk, and touch-up painted the 

baseboards. New mirror has been installed. Thermostat cover has been installed.   
o Mat / yoga hooks have been firmly installed. 
o Installed new LED bulbs. 

• Both pergolas have been removed. 
• Vending machine is now on a two week restock / cleaning schedule. 
• Outside pool shower has been fixed. New pipe and shower valve have been installed. 

PENDING MAINTENANCE 
• Replacing all restroom toilet paper holders and paper towel dispensers at no cost to 

commercial grade product.  
• Replacing bathroom door in the men’s restroom. 
• Remove rust from restroom stalls/walls, paint non-slip on restroom floors. 
• Replace missing lock on Women’s restroom stall. Lock is on order. 
• Spackle and paint area around the A/C in the fitness center.  

  
EVENTS 

• Food truck schedules have been planned through April 2023.   
o We have 1 food truck at the Azalea Ridge amenity center every Thursday night 

from 5-8pm. 
• Spring Fling CDD/HOA event – April 1, 2023 

o Saturday from 10am to 1pm. Plan to schedule some type of dessert truck either 
at 11am to 2pm or 10am to 1pm.  

o Activities include face painting, egg hunts, crafts, and games. 
• Spring Community Yard Sale – TBD in March. 
• Movie on the Lawn – TBD 

o “Lyle, Lyle, Crocodile” showtime at 6:30pm on the soccer field. Food truck will be 
on site from 5pm to 8pm. 

• Advertising for Lifeguards – Homeowners can contact management if they’re interested. 
• Room rentals and programs 

o Consideration of changing the rental hours for pool and room to five. Currently 
set at four-hour increments. 

o Consideration of fees waived on clubs / organizations. 
o Consideration of changing rental fees. 

 
 
 

  



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 3 

 
 
 

 
After. 

  

Completed Projects 

Both Pergolas and debris have been 
removed. 

 

Before 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 4 

 
 

  

Completed Projects 

Outside pool shower pipe has been 
replaced and has a new valve.  



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 5 

 
 
 

 
 

  

Completed Projects 

Key card scanners installed in 
restrooms by large pool. 

 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 6 

 
 
 

 
              New mirror installed. 

  

Completed Projects 

Final touches on fitness center have 
been completed.   

             Crown molding imperfections completed. 

Mat hanger installed. 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023 7 

 
 
 
 
For any questions or comments regarding the above 
information please contact Tara Lee, Amenity Manager, at 
Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com. 

 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Tara Lee 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Conclusion 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



 / 1 5

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: 1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

General Information

Customer Focus Areas

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Friday, Feb 17, 2023

Friday, May 19, 2023

Taylor Tennison 

Willie Perez Davila 



 / 2 5

Carryover Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

We will need to add some
more Jack Frost in this

shrub line

1

1



 / 3 5

Recommendations for Property Enhancements

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

We recommend adding
Playground mulch

This is a safety hazard
and

we recommend grading
the area from the sidewalk to
the curb and installing a pallet
of sod.

We recommend to
landscape the entrance on

Long Bay

1 2

3

1

2

3



 / 4 5

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

The Fence which was
damaged is now fixed.

1

1



 / 5 5

Completed Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
1667 Azalea Ridge Blvd

Hollies trees will be
trimmed back to the top of

the fence

We have completed
cutting

back on the grasses

1 2

1

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, January 4, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Plantation Oaks 

Athletic Center, 845 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Marty Genska Chairman 
 Jacqui Proctor Miller Vice Chairperson 
 Yolanda Nolte Supervisor 
 William Barnhouse Supervisor 
 Dennis Schroyer Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Jay Soriano  GMS 
 Several Residents 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the January 4, 2023 meeting.   

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 

A. Appointment of New Supervisors to Fill Vacant Seats 

 Ms. Giles stated two seats expired in November and we will take them one at a time.  The 

first is seat 4 currently held by Jacqui Miller. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor Jacqui Miller was reappointed to seat no. 4. 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

2 

 

 Ms. Giles stated seat 2 is currently held by Yolanda Nolte and she does not wish to stay on 

the board.  What is the board’s position on this seat? 

 Mr. Genska stated we will do an eblast, we still have resumes to go through.   

 

B. Oath of Office for Appointed Supervisors 

 Ms. Giles being a notary public of the State of Florida administered the oath of office to 

Ms. Miller. 

 Ms. Giles stated although you have served for years as a supervisor, I would like to remind 

you that you are subject to comply with the sunshine law.  If any business is to be discussed about 

Ridgewood Trails CDD you can talk to anyone other than the supervisors; you can only talk to the 

supervisors at a publicly noticed meeting such as this one.   

 

C. Election of Officers, Resolution 2023-01 

 Ms. Giles stated this resolution is to add Jacqui Miller as an officer of the district.  Unless 

there are any changes to the current slate of officers that designation of officers is: Marty Genska 

chairman, Jacqui Proctor Miller vice chair, William Barnhouse, Dennis Schroyer, Yolanda Nolte 

assistant secretaries.  Also in that resolution is the GMS staff, myself as secretary and treasurer, 

Daniel Laughlin Darrin Mossing, Jim Oliver and Howard McGaffney as assistant treasurers and 

assistant secretaries.  They are listed as a backup to me. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor Resolution 2023-01 was approved reflecting the same slate of 
officers.   

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Request of Freedom HOA to 
Amend the District’s Boundaries to Remove 
the Freedom Section 

 Ms. Giles stated I will go over how public comments will be taken on this item.  If you 

emailed me I have your email, there is a spreadsheet in the back if you want to verify that.  I 

annotated your objection, tallied it and it is on record.  If you are from Freedom your position on 

the matter has been collected with the petition.  You can fill out a comment card with your name 

and address, drop it in this box and I will call those out.  I ask that you consider being brief.  Again, 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

3 

if you signed that petition or are on this spreadsheet your voice has been heard.  A simple objection 

with your name and address carries the same weight as a lengthy explanation.  I ask that you 

consider that.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated the purpose for this agenda item is so that you can consider input 

from the community members about their opinion on whether you want to support or object to 

Freedom’s moving forward with the petition.  To be clear the board has no control over whether 

Freedom chooses to move forward or not, this is whether the district wants to have a position on 

Freedom’s petition. 

 Several homeowners addressed the board in support of the petition to do a boundary 

amendment to separate the Freedom section from the rest of the CDD, indicating they feel that 

they do not benefit in any way, do not use the amenities, and do not want to pay the CDD 

assessment. 

 Some homeowners spoke against the petition to do a boundary amendment indicating that 

the Freedom owners signed a binding contract at purchase, showing their obligation as a purchaser 

and as a member of the CDD, and the Freedom homeowners do benefit from the roadways and 

stormwater system. 

 Ms. Giles stated public comments are closed and at this point the board can have discussion 

and I think what we are looking for is a board decision to support, object or take no action.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated the district treats everyone the same with the exception of there are 

two different lot sizes and you pay assessments at different levels based on those lot sizes.  The 

benefit the district offers whether it is good or bad, everyone receives the same benefit.   

 Mr. Genska stated the CDD facilities were planned and built for the entire community, 

parks, ponds, pool, amenity center.  Now we have approximately 19% of the community, Freedom, 

want the remaining 81% of Azalea Ridge to absorb their share of the costs for the sole reason that 

they don’t want to use the facilities.  However, these facilities were built for everybody, whether 

you choose to use them or not, they are there.  The O&M assessment was disclosed at purchase.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated our firm has been doing CDDs in one form or fashion for 40 years, I 

have been doing this for 15 years.  I have 35 other districts that I represent and the firm has about 

300 other districts that we represent.  This is the first instance that my circle of peers is familiar 

with in which a group of residents has sought to undertake this path.  That statutory language is 

usually used when the original developer of the project changes development plans and removes 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

4 

a large piece of property from the community.  Eagle Landing is across the street and further down 

the street is Grayhawk.  Initially Grayhawk was Phase 7 of Eagle Landing, but Eagle Landing’s 

developer didn’t want to pursue that and sold it to a different company and that large area came 

out of Eagle Landing and then created a new CDD.  The reason this doesn’t happen frequently is 

that if your property had debt assessments on it, you would be prohibited by law from being 

removed from the district.  The only reason the opportunity exists here is that this project was in 

default and went into bankruptcy in 2008/2009 and that debt was foreclosed because the original 

developer could not pay the bills.  When Horton bought it, it no longer had debt service 

assessments on the property.  If it was a traditional CDD like Eagle Landing, like Oakleaf the 

residents within the community would have a minimum of a 30-year assessment and what 

frequently happens is that throughout the life cycle of the CDD, the original bonds are issued at 

the beginning to build the infrastructure, then as the infrastructure ages the district issues new 

bonds and it is a perpetual rotation in the life cycle of a CDD.  You are the exception in the sense 

that you don’t have debt service assessments on that property.  Usually, a CDD is always going to 

have a debt collection process because that is how they operate and maintain and continue to 

improve the facilities.  I agree that it authorizes landowners to petition, but the process and reason 

that was put in there is perhaps not this scenario, but that doesn’t mean you can’t avail yourself to 

it.   

 Ms. Nolte asked what happens if we say yes and what happens if we say no? 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I don’t know the answer to that.  What will happen if the Freedom 

group decides to move forward is that there is a list of requirements that a petition has to contain 

in Chapter 190 and there is a list of factors that the county has to evaluate.  Those factors are things 

like is this a contiguous development meaning are they side by side and could one portion of it 

function without the rest of it and is the CDD going to be paying to maintain things that are offering 

benefit to other people who are not paying into it.  All those factors even though they are not what 

is included in the petition, they are things that the county has to consider.  If you vote to support it 

then the county will only have the position of the POA and they will think the CDD is supporting 

this and the county probably does not have a strong opinion one way or the other on it.  If the CDD 

objects to it and we submit an argument as to why we don’t believe that this amendment to the 

district boundary meets the purpose of the statute, then the county would have to make a decision 

as to which side they think is fair under the statute.   



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

5 

 Ms. Miller stated regardless of whether we say yay or nay, it is not really up to us. 

 Ms. Buchanan stated correct. 

 Ms. Miller stated I am on a fixed income, I live in Azalea Ridge I don’t live in Freedom 

and I see this is a democracy and I know this is not a vote but 81% and 19%, I can’t go along with 

19% if 81% is saying no.   

 Ms. Nolte stated when we were at the settlement table we had a choice, we could not have 

signed because an aboveground pool is really important to our family and we were told we could 

have one, but we chose to sign.  We chose to follow the rules by not putting in an aboveground 

pool because we signed a contract and we honored that.   

 After further discussion the board took the following action. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Barnhouse seconded by Ms. Miller with four in 
favor and Mr. Schroyer opposed the request by the Freedom HOA to 
amend the district’s boundaries to remove the Freedom section was 
denied. 

 

 Ms. Buchanan stated at this time, looking for next steps, I think you will have another point 

at which this will come back to you.  Right now, we understand that Freedom has the intent to file, 

but they have not filed anything.  Once they do, if they do, then I think I would request an 

authorization from the board to prepare an objection to submit, but at the same time you get to 

direct me to do that if that is what you want.  I wouldn’t file anything on my own, Marilee wouldn’t 

file anything on her own, we are going to come back to you.   

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Designation of Hearing Date to Adopt Rates 

 Ms. Giles stated we discussed some rates and took the higher rates for the public hearing 

and you can go down from there at the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Schroyer with all in 
favor the public hearing to adopt rates was scheduled for March 1, 
2023.   

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2023-02 
Regarding Records Retention Policy 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

6 

 Ms. Buchanan stated this is an administrative item that deals with your records retention.  

Typically, what the district has decided in the past is that rather than have the manpower to go 

through and weed out records as they expire under the state’s records retention schedule you just 

kept everything.  That leads to a fair amount of buildup of paper and electronic records.  The 

resolution allows you to delete emails that don’t have any substantive value such as yes, I will be 

there or a quorum check you don’t have to save, you can delete them.  They don’t have any value 

anymore.  That will also be helpful to staff because Marilee gets a lot of emails.  It reduces the 

number of emails she has to go through if there is a public records request.  It also authorizes the 

district to store its records electronically as compared to paper.  We have a cloud base that has 

been set up, but it goes to reducing the clutter and waste.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Ms. Nolte with all in favor 
Resolution 2023-02 was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 C. Manager  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 D. Operation Manager’s Report  

 Mr. Soriano gave an overview of the field operations, maintenance and amenity 

management report, copy of which was included in the agenda package. 

 

E. Amenity Manager 

1. Report 

 A copy of the report was included I the agenda package. 

 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

7 

2. Landscape Inspection Report 

 A copy of the landscape inspection report was included in the agenda package. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 

 Mr. Schroyer stated I would still like to see committees, as an example to help Jay tear 

down the pergolas, that way we are not paying a lot of money for someone to do this.   

 Mr. Soriano stated we did that with the fitness center; a couple people helped out and they 

were a great help and saved us a lot of money and time on that.  There are a lot of people who 

could help out. 

 Ms. Giles stated there is liability when a resident starts doing CDD work.  We can check 

into a rider policy to allow a resident to do some of that.  Jay can use his discretion.  We did receive 

a lot of angry resident emails, very angry as to why the staff was recruiting help from the residents.  

I think that is a slippery slope.  I’m glad you brought it up and it is on the recording that it is 

something you would like to do. 

 Mr. Schroyer stated we want to be a community so let’s try to work together and try to save 

some money. 

 Ms. Giles stated we just have to be careful because if a resident gets hurt, we open ourselves 

up to liability. 

 Mr. Schroyer stated committees can also make recommendations such as on the type of 

landscaping.   

 Mr. Soriano stated we could do that with direction of certain board members.  We did that 

on the capital project for the fitness center, they helped out a lot in picking out equipment.   

 Ms. Giles stated we can do that tonight.  It is called oversight and each of the board 

members takes on a different project such as landscaping, amenities, whatever. 

 Mr. Soriano stated you could help me recruit some of those volunteers.  That would save 

me time and also save the district money.   

 Mr. Schroyer stated it is up to the board if we want to do this or not. 

 Ms. Miller stated I agree. 

 Ms. Giles stated Jay and I can talk you through some recommendations for oversight for 

the board members of what we see in other districts such as landscape maintenance and parks, 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

8 

golf, aquatics, athletics.  They divide up the big chunks and although the board makes the decision 

as a whole, that supervisor works directly with Jay. 

 The supervisors chose the following areas of oversight:  Ms. Nolte landscape, Mr. Schroyer 

general maintenance, Mr. Genska security and technology, Ms. Miller athletics and Mr. Barnhouse 

aquatics. 

 

 Audience Comments 

 Additional comments:  Possibility of adding a basketball court to existing amenities, gating 

the community, traffic light planned by high school, more street lighting, movie night canceled, 

private ceremonies/parties are not allowed on CDD pond banks, pond bank mowing, cost of 

showing a movie, pool has a bad reputation, need of lifeguards, incentivize lifeguards to stay, 

behavior of residents towards lifeguards, Eagle Scouts volunteer hours for service projects, non-

resident membership to use the amenities. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 2, 2022 Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Barnhouse seconded by Ms. Miller with all in 
favor the November 2, 2022 minutes were approved as amended. 

 

 B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 D. Approval of Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Schroyer seconded by Mr. Genska with all in 
favor the check register was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for Wednesday, 
March 1, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 
Amenity Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge 
Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is scheduled for March 1, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea 

Ridge Amenity Center. 



January 4, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

9 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Ms. Nolte with all in favor 
the meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
January	31,	2023



1

2-3

4-5

6

7

8

9

Long Term Debt Summary

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

Month to Month

Capital Reserve Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Fund Series 2007A Income Statement



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

TOTALS
	 GENERAL	 CAPITAL	RESERVE DEBT	SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
	 FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

ASSETS:   

CASH $83,919 $89,924 --- $173,843
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD $232,486 --- --- $232,486
INVESTMENTS - US BANK - GENERAL FUND $202,053 --- --- $202,053
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD - CAPITAL RESERVE --- $78,558 --- $78,558

INVESTMENTS  
Reserve A --- --- $9,745 $9,745
Revenue A --- --- $12,986 $12,986

PREPAID EXPENSES $1,129 --- --- $1,129
DEPOSITS $2,803 --- --- $2,803
DUE FROM GENERAL FUND --- $10,929 --- $10,929

TOTAL ASSETS $522,391 $179,410 $22,731 $724,532

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $0 --- --- $0
ACCRUED EXPENSES $2,299 --- --- $2,299
DUE TO CAPITAL RESERVE $10,929 --- --- $10,929

TOTAL LIABILITIES $13,228 $0 $0 $13,228

FUND BALANCES:
     UNASSIGNED $505,231 --- --- $505,231
     NONSPENDABLE $3,932 --- --- $3,932
     ASSIGNED $0 --- --- $0
     ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL RESERVE $0 $179,410 --- $179,410
     RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE --- --- $22,731 $22,731
    
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $509,163 $179,410 $22,731 $711,304

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY $522,391 $179,410 $22,731 $724,532

January 31, 2023

1



 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	01/31/23 THRU	01/31/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES: 
Assessments - Tax Roll $554,270 $537,528 $537,528 $0
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $200 $67 $10,583 $10,517
Rental Revenue $500 $167 $950 $783    
TOTAL REVENUES $554,970 $537,761 $549,062 $11,300

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisor Fees $8,000 $2,667 $1,800 $867
FICA Expense $612 $204 $138 $66
Engineering $3,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $5,260 $0
Arbitrage $600 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $1,000 $333 $333 $0
Attorney $12,000 $4,000 $5,167 ($1,167)
Annual Audit $3,190 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $5,650 $5,650 $4,436 $1,214
Management Fees $45,675 $15,225 $15,225 $0
Information Technology $1,800 $600 $600 $0
Website Maintenance $1,200 $400 $400 $0
Telephone $350 $117 $132 ($15)
Postage (1) $800 $267 $539 ($273)
Printing & Binding (1) $1,500 $500 $1,578 ($1,078)
Insurance $8,212 $8,212 $7,358 $854
Legal Advertising $1,800 $600 $75 $525
Other Current Charges $1,000 $333 $9 $325
Office Supplies $250 $250 $276 ($26)
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $102,074 $45,793 $43,502 $2,291

AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $19,505 $19,505 $19,465 $40
Amenity Manager $63,600 $21,200 $21,200 $0
Facility Assistant $5,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
General Facility Maintenance $11,500 $3,833 $1,459 $2,374
Repairs & Replacements $15,000 $5,000 $14,463 ($9,463)
Lifeguards $17,344 $0 $0 $0
Pool Maintenance $16,865 $5,622 $5,622 ($0)
Pool Chemicals $12,640 $4,213 $3,863 $350
Other Current Charges $1,000 $333 $114 $219
Water & Sewer $13,500 $4,500 $4,096 $404
Electric $14,000 $4,667 $5,122 ($455)
Internet/Cable $5,600 $1,867 $1,898 ($31)
Janitorial $10,583 $3,528 $3,528 $0
Janitorial Supplies $2,500 $833 $671 $162
Security System $8,700 $2,900 $4,868 ($1,968)
Refuse Service $2,500 $833 $830 $3
Special Events $10,000 $1,433 $1,433 $0
Pool Permit $382 $0 $0 $0
Pest Control $1,000 $333 $49 $284
Capital Reserve $35,525 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $266,743 $82,268 $88,680 ($6,413)

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended January 31, 2023

2



 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	01/31/23 THRU	01/31/23 VARIANCE

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended January 31, 2023

EXPENDITURES:

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
Operations Management $22,948 $7,649 $7,649 $0
Access Cards $1,000 $333 $0 $333
Electric $9,000 $3,000 $4,665 ($1,665)
Water $8,300 $2,767 $2,083 $684
Repairs & Maintenance $18,200 $6,067 $1,715 $4,352
Landscape Maintenance $104,704 $34,901 $30,876 $4,025
Landscape Contingency $10,000 $3,333 $5,218 ($1,884)
Lake Maintenance $12,000 $4,000 $2,016 $1,984

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $186,152 $62,051 $54,221 $7,830

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $554,970 $190,111 $186,403 $3,708

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 $362,658

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $146,505

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $509,163

(1)  Includes cost for mailed notice to Freedom Neighborhood.

3



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

REVENUES:
Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $36138 $498229 $3161 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $537,528
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $154 $9314 $140 $975 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,583
Rental Revenue $750 $200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950
TOTAL REVENUES $904 $45,653 $498,369 $4,136 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $549,062 

EXPENDITURES: ADMINISTRATIVE
Supervisor Fees $0 $800 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,800 
FICA Expense $0 $61 $0 $77 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $138 
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Assessment Roll $5,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,260 
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Dissemination $83 $83 $83 $83 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $333 
Attorney $1,167 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,167 
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Trustee $1,048 $0 $0 $3,388 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,436 
Management Fees $3,806 $3,806 $3,806 $3,806 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,225 
Information Technology $150 $150 $150 $150 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 
Website Maintenance $100 $100 $100 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400 
Telephone $31 $75 $0 $26 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $132 
Postage (1) $35 $459 $10 $36 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $539 
Printing & Binding (1) $137 $1,300 $40 $101 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,578 
Insurance $7,358 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,358 
Legal Advertising $38 $0 $37 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75 
Other Current Charges $0 $9 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9 
Office Supplies $0 $275 $1 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $276 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 
ADMINISTRATIVE TOTALS $19,389 $11,119 $4,227 $8,768 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $43,502

EXPENDITURES: AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $19,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,465 
Amenity Manager $5,300 $5,300 $5,300 $5,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,200 
General Facility Maintenance $624 $0 $835 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,459 
Repairs & Replacements $5,843 $7,785 $836 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,463 
Lifeguards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pool Maintenance $1,405 $1,405 $1,405 $1,405 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,622 
Pool Chemicals $778 $1,064 $778 $1,244 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,863 
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $114 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $114 
Water & Sewer $1,127 $843 $1,111 $1,016 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,096 
Electric $1,365 $1,484 $1,039 $1,234 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,122 
Internet/Cable $461 $473 $473 $492 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,898 
Janitorial $882 $882 $882 $882 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,528 
Janitorial Supplies $0 $671 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $671 
Security System $530 $2,285 $1,514 $538 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,868 
Refuse Service $191 $215 $215 $208 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $830 
Special Events $553 $402 $478 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,433 
Pool Permit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pest Control $49 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $49 
Capital Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
AMENITY CENTER TOTALS $38,572 $22,808 $14,866 $12,434 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $88,680

4



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

EXPENDITURES: GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
Operations Management $1,912 $1,912 $1,912 $1,912 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,649 
Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Electric $1,169 $1,248 $1,141 $1,107 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,665 
Water $476 $588 $549 $469 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,083 
Repairs & Maintenance $718 $354 $643 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,715 
Landscape Maintenance $10,292 $10,292 $10,292 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,876 
Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $5,218 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,218 
Lake Maintenance $672 $672 $672 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,016 
Capital Outlay - Streetlighting $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

GROUND MAINTENANCE TOTAL $15,239 $15,066 $20,427 $3,489 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $54,221

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $73,200 $48,993 $39,521 $24,690 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $186,403

EXCESS REV/(EXP) ($72,296) ($3,340) $458,848 ($20,554) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $362,658 

5



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
CAPITAL RESERVE

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 01/31/23  THRU 01/31/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Capital Reserve Transfer In $35,525 $0  $0 $0
Interest Income $250 $83  $1,046 $963

    
 TOTAL REVENUES $35,775 $83 $1,046 $963

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Reserves $60,000 $20,000 $0 $20,000
Amenity Improvement Project $4,500 $1,500 $0 $1,500
Other Curent Charges $600 $200 $0 $200
Repair & Maintenance $10,000 $3,333 $1,213 $2,120

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $75,100 $25,033 $1,213 $23,820

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($39,325) ($167)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $180,647 $179,577

FUND BALANCE - Ending $141,322 $179,410

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended January 31, 2023

6



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND - 2007A

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 01/31/23  THRU 01/31/23 VARIANCE

 
REVENUES:
Assessments - On Roll $13,359 $12,955 $12,955 $0
Interest Income $0 $0  $146 $146

    
TOTAL REVENUES $13,359 $12,955 $13,101 $146

EXPENDITURES:

Interest Expense - 11/1 $3,814 $3,814 $3,814 $0
Interest Expense - 5/1 $3,814 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1  $5,000 $0 $0 $0

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $12,628 $3,814 $3,814 $0

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 ($1,113) ($1,113)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 ($1,113) ($1,113)

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $732 $8,174

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $4,856 $14,557

FUND BALANCE - Ending $5,588 $22,731

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended January 31, 2023

7



Series 2007A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Interest Rate: 5.650%
Maturity Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve Fund Definition:
Reserve Fund Requirement (6.949% of Outstanding Bonds): $9,381
Reserve Fund Balance: $9,745

Bonds outstanding - 6/1/2019 $150,000
Less:  May 1, 2020 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Mandatory) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $135,000
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2023 Assessments Receipts Summary

ASSESSED
# UNITS 

ASSESSED

SERIES 2007A
DEBT SERVICE 

ASSESSED
FY23 O&M 
ASSESSED

TOTAL 
ASSESSED

NET TAX ROLL ASSESSED 691 13,358.77            554,282.37       567,641.14       

TOTAL ASSESSED 691 13,358.77           554,282.37       567,641.14      

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

CLAY COUNTY DISTRIBUTION
DATE 

RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
SERIES 2007A 

DEBT RECEIPTS O&M RECEIPTS
1 11/09/22 1,103.67              25.97 1,077.70           
2 11/16/22 19,001.27            447.17               18,554.10         
3 11/28/22 16,904.14            397.82               16,506.32         
4 12/12/22 474,928.58         11,176.89         463,751.69       
5 12/19/22 35,307.89            830.93               34,476.96         
6 01/11/23 3,237.49              76.19 3,161.30           

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS           550,483.04           12,954.97        537,528.07 

PERCENT COLLECTED TOTAL DEBT O&M
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED 96.98% 96.98% 96.98%

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
Fund Date Check Numbers Amount

 

General Fund
 12/1/22 - 12/31/22 2403-2421 $51,419.85

1/1/23 - 1/31/23 2422-2431 $246,436.81
$297,856.66

Autopayments
12/6/22 Comcast $207.27
12/5/22 Waste Pro $215.37

12/12/23 Comcast $265.27
12/28/22 Newlane Finance $395.12
12/30/22 CCUA $1,660.12
12/30/22 Clay Electric $2,180.17

1/5/23 Waste Pro $208.49
1/9/23 Comcast $207.27

1/12/23 Comcast $284.34
1/30/23 Newlane Finance $395.12
1/31/23 Clay Electric $42.00
1/30/23 CCUA $1,485.32

$7,545.86

Total  $305,402.52

* Fedex invoices and Autopayments available upon request.

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
Community Development District

Check Run Summary
12/1/2022 - 1/31/2023



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/15/23          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 12/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/07/22 00119 12/01/22 8181311  202212 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,292.00
DEC LANSCAPING MAINTENANC

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              10,292.00 002403
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00126 11/01/22 373529   202211 320-57200-34510                                     *            1,620.00

CLOUD ACCESS SERVICE
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES                                       1,620.00 002404

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00126 11/03/22 374115   202210 320-57200-46000                                     *            4,976.72

SECURITY INSTALLATION
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES                                       4,976.72 002405

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00117 11/29/22 3141441  202210 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,167.00

OCT GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,167.00 002406

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00095 12/01/22 13129561 202212 320-57200-52100                                     *              777.60

DEC POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                          777.60 002407

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00121 11/15/22 71745877 202211 320-57200-52200                                     *              221.62

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
THE HOME DEPOT PRO                                                221.62 002408

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/07/22 00075 11/21/22 W05875   202211 320-57200-46000                                     *            3,600.00

INSTALL MEW HEAT PUMP
TOOLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.                                        3,600.00 002409

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00003 12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,806.25

DEC MANAGEMENT FEES
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-35200                                     *              100.00

DEC WEBSITE ADMIN
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

DEC INFORMATION TECH
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-31300                                     *               83.33

DEC DISSEMINATION
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .51

OFFICE SUPPLIES
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-42000                                     *                9.81

POSTAGE
12/01/22 238      202212 310-51300-42500                                     *               40.35

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,190.25 002410

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00042 12/02/22 57183B   202212 330-53800-46400                                     *              672.00

DEC LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            672.00 002411

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/15/23          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 12/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/22/22 00095 11/21/22 13129561 202211 320-57200-52100                                     *              777.60
NOV POOL CHEMICALS

POOLSURE                                                          777.60 002412
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00127 12/08/22 12810105 202212 320-57200-49500                                     *              450.00

EVENT MOVIE 1/07/22
PROGRESSIVE TOTAL ENTERTAINMENT                                   450.00 002413

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00039 12/01/22 321      202212 320-57200-34200                                     *              881.92

DEC JANITORIAL SERVICES
12/01/22 321      202212 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,405.42

DEC POOL MAINTENANCE
12/01/22 321      202212 330-53800-34000                                     *            1,912.33

DEC CONTRACT ADMIN
12/01/22 321      202212 320-57200-46200                                     *            5,300.00

DEC FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             9,499.67 002414

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00118 11/21/22 70979580 202211 320-57200-34510                                     *              270.00

NOV SECURITY CAMERA
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               270.00 002415

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/22/22 00118 11/21/22 71147142 202212 320-57200-34510                                     *              270.00

DEC SECURITY SYSTEM
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               270.00 002416

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/29/22 00098 12/16/22 1277     202212 320-57200-46000                                     *              360.00

REPLACE BALLAST
ADELCO ELECTRIC INC                                               360.00 002417

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/29/22 00119 12/15/22 8210819  202212 330-53800-46300                                     *            5,217.64

INSTALL PINK AZALEAS
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                               5,217.64 002418

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/29/22 00117 12/21/22 3156138  202211 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,999.80

NOV GENERAL COUNSEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  3,999.80 002419

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/29/22 00039 12/09/22 323      202211 330-53800-46000                                     *              353.57

NOV REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
12/09/22 323      202211 320-57200-52200                                     *              449.31

NOV JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
12/09/22 323      202211 320-57200-46000                                     *              442.08

NOV AMENITY CENTER
12/09/22 323      202211 310-51300-51000                                     *              274.80

NOV OFFICE SUPPLIES

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/15/23          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 12/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/09/22 323      202211 320-57200-49500                                     *              402.47
NOV SPECIAL EVENTS

12/09/22 323      202211 320-57200-52100                                     *              286.52
NOV POOL CHEMICALS

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             2,208.75 002420
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/29/22 00118 12/14/22 71252405 202212 320-57200-34510                                     *              849.20

CAMERA INSTALLATION
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               849.20 002421

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/11/23 00059 1/09/23 01092023 202301 300-15100-10000                                     *          200,000.00

GENERAL FUND EXCESS TXF
STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION                                 200,000.00 002422

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00015 12/15/22 2022-240 202212 310-51300-48000                                     *               37.00

NTC OF MEETING 01/04/22
OSTEEN MEDIA GROUP-CLAY TODAY                                      37.00 002423

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00003 1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,806.25

JAN MANAGEMENT FEES
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-35200                                     *              100.00

JAN WEBSITE ADMIN
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

JAN INFORMATION TECH
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-31300                                     *               83.33

JAN DISSEMINATION FEE
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .51

OFFICE SUPPLIES
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-42000                                     *               35.76

POSTAGE
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-42500                                     *              101.10

COPIES
1/01/23 239      202301 310-51300-41000                                     *               25.94

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,302.89 002424

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00064 1/04/23 01042023 202301 320-57200-34500                                     *              114.00

SECURITY HOA MEETING 1/4
KEITH A. SMITH                                                    114.00 002425

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00095 1/01/23 13129561 202301 320-57200-52100                                     *            1,244.16

JAN POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,244.16 002426

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00039 1/01/23 324      202301 320-57200-34200                                     *              881.92

JAN JANITORIAL SERVICES

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/15/23          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 12/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

1/01/23 324      202301 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,405.42
JAN POOL MAINTENANCE

1/01/23 324      202301 330-53800-34000                                     *            1,912.33
JAN CONTRACT ADMIN

1/01/23 324      202301 320-57200-46200                                     *            5,300.00
JAN FACILITY MANAGEMENT

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             9,499.67 002427
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/13/23 00118 12/22/22 71320336 202301 320-57200-34510                                     *              142.95

DEC SECURITY CAMERAS
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               142.95 002428

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/30/23 00015 10/20/22 INV#2022 202210 310-51300-48000                                     *               38.00

11/2 NOTICE OF MEETINGS
OSTEEN MEDIA GROUP-CLAY TODAY                                      38.00 002429

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/30/23 00039 1/12/23 325      202212 320-57200-46100                                     *              835.00

DEC GEN FAC MAINTENANCE
1/12/23 325      202212 330-53800-46000                                     *              643.00

DEC RPRS/RPLC FIELD
1/12/23 325      202212 320-57200-46000                                     *              475.70

DEC RPRS/RPLC AMENITY
1/12/23 325      202212 320-57200-49500                                     *               28.38

DEC SPECIAL EVENTS
1/26/23 01262023 202301 300-20700-10100                                     *           24,558.64

WF CREDIT REFUND ON CC
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                            26,540.72 002430

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/30/23 00017 1/25/23 6809512  202301 310-51300-32300                                     *            3,388.14

FY23 TRUSTEE FEES 2007A&B
1/25/23 6809512  202301 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,129.28

FY24 TRUSTEE FEES 2007A&B
US BANK                                                         4,517.42 002431

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                297,856.66

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              297,856.66

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO


























































































	Agenda
	III. A.        Appointment of New Supervisor to Fill Vacant Seat 
	C.        Election of Officers, Resolution 2023-03 
	            IV. A.                                                              Adopting Revised Suspension and Termination Rules, Resolution 2023-04 
	B.        Adopting Revised Rental Rates, Resolution 2023-05 
	V.        Consideration of Spending Authority Resolution, Resolution 2023-06 
	VI. Consideration of First Addendum to Agreement with Riverside Management Services
	VII. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank for Fiscal Year 2022
	VIII.    Consideration of Proposals for Storm Drain Cleaning 
	IX. B.                 Engineer – Work Authorization No. 17 for 2023 Hourly Billing Rate Escalation
	 E. 1.                                                               Report 
	2.   Landscape Inspection Report
	XI. A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Meeting
	            B.                                                              Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
	C.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	D.                                                                          Approval of Check Register 



